FTHE WORLD MEDICI DEL MONDO MÉDICOS DEL MUNDO ΓΙΑΤΡΟΙ ΤΟΥ ΚΟΣΜΟΥ MÉDECINS DU MONDE 世界医生组织 DOCTORS OF منظمة أطباء العالم EROEऋ団 ÄRZTE DER WELT द्विया के डॉक्टर MÉDICOS DEL MUNDO ΓΙΑΤΡΟΙ ΤΟΥ ΚΟΣΜΟΥ DOK ÄKARE I VÄRLDEN MÉDICOS DO MUNDO DOCTORS OF THE WORLD MEDICI DEL MONDO 世界の医療団 ÄRZTE DER WELT द्विया के S DU MONDE 世界医生组织 ΓΙΑΤΡΟΙ ΤΟΥ ΚΟΣΜΟΥ DOKTERS VAN DE WERELD منظمة أطباء العالم DOCTORS OF THE WORLD MEDICI DE MÉDICOS DEL MUNDO ÄRZTE DER WELT द्विया के डॉक्टर LÄKARE I VÄRLDEN ΓΙΑΤΡΟΙ ΤΟΥ ΚΟΣΜΟΥ DOKTERS VAN D



# SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE ADULTS

Policy and Protection Guidelines 2019

Updated: October 2019

Doctors of the World - Greek Delegation Board of Directors

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

1.1. Introduction	4
1.2. Vulnerable Adults Safeguarding Policy	5
1.3. Definitions	6
1.4. Good Safeguarding of Vulnerable Adults	7
1.5. Guiding Principles	7
1.6. Rights Based Approach	8
1.7. Key Facts For Adults at Risk of Violence and Abuse	8
Frequency of Abuse	8
Risk Factors of Abuse	8
Main Types of Abuse	9
1.8. Confidentiality and Consent	9
1.9. Undue Influence and the wishes of the Vulnerable Adult	10
2.0. Detection and Assessment of Vulnerable Adult Abuse	10
2.1. Detection	10
2.2. Assessment	11
2.3. Managing the conversation with an individual when abuse is suspected	11
2.4. Management and Referral	11
3.0. References	12

#### 1.1 INTRODUCTION

Doctors of the World-Greece (MDM-GR) has prepared the manual as a guide to employees and volunteers that involved in the operations of the organization. The purpose of the manual is to provide a defined context for the staff in terms of respect and protection of Vulnerable Adults in all the sectors of function of the organization while at the same time to establish all the compulsory responsibilities and obligations for the protection of the vulnerable persons from harm and abuse.

This document supersedes any previously distributed Vulnerable Adults policy for the employees and volunteers.

MDM fully intends to comply and respect with all national, European and international/humanitarian law that apply to the protection of Vulnerable Adults.

Vulnerable adults, who are persons lacking the personal capacity to protect their interests, are in particular need of a reliable legal framework. There is, however, no uniform legal framework allowing for a proper protection of vulnerable adults in cross-border situations in Third Countries where MDM might operating.

MDM taking into consideration the fact that the protection of vulnerable adults is direct linked to the respect of human rights and that every vulnerable adult must, like any other adult, to be considered as a holder of human rights and able to make decisions freely, independently and with awareness within the boundaries of its cognitive ability, and not to be treated as a passive beneficiary of care.

The Handbook for the Safeguarding of Vulnerable Adults integrates the United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities, the European Convention on Human Rights, the Council of Europe Convention on preventing and combating violence against women and domestic violence, the Convention on the International Protection of Adult.

MDM reserves the right in its sole discretion to revise these policies by adding, reducing, correcting or updating its content, and any or all of the policies and procedures. Any such changes are effective when made in writing and approved by the Board of Directors of the Doctors of the World-Greek Delegation. The organization is committed to inform all employees, volunteers and beneficiaries of any such changes.

Employees and Volunteers are required to read the written policies before signing their employment or voluntarism contract or as in signing the contract they are agreeing to comply.

Violations of any of these policies will subject the violating employee(s) or volunteer(s) to disciplinary action, possibly including termination of their contract.

#### 1.2. VULNERABLE ADULTS SAFE-GUARDING POLICY

Doctors of the World is committed to conducting its programs and operations in a manner that is safe for all the Vulnerable Adults and it serves and helping protect the Vulnerable Adults with whom Doctors of the World staff and representatives is in contact.

All Doctors of the World Representatives are explicitly prohibited from engaging in any activity that may result in any kind of Vulnerable Adults Harm and Abuse.

In addition, it is Doctors of the World policy to create and proactively maintain an environment that aims to prevent and deter any actions and omissions, whether deliberate or inadvertent, which place Vulnerable Adults at the risk of any kind of Harm and Abuse.

All Doctors of the World Representatives are expected to conduct themselves in a manner consistent with this commitment and obligation. Any violations of this policy will be treated as a serious issue and will result in disciplinary action being taken, including termination and any other available legal remedy.

In furtherance of this Policy, Doctors of the World has adopted Procedures, described below, to promote:

- Prevention of Vulnerable Adults Abuse: Striving, through awareness, good practice and training, to minimize the risks to vulnerable adults and take positive steps to help protect vulnerable adults who are the subject of any concerns.
- Reporting of vulnerable adults Abuse: Ensuring
  that all Representatives know the steps to take
  and whom to contact where concerns arise regarding the safeguarding of children.
- Responding to vulnerable adults Abuse: Engaging in action that supports and protects vulner-

able adults when concerns arise regarding their well-being; supporting those who raise such concerns; investigating, or cooperating with any subsequent investigation; and taking appropriate corrective action to prevent the recurrence of such activity.

Training to Promote Awareness of Vulnerable
 Adults Safeguarding Obligations: Ensuring that
 all Representatives are notified of and made aware
 that they are expected to comply with the policy.

## POLICY TO COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

It is Doctors of the World Policy to ensure compliance with host country and local vulnerable adults welfare and protection legislation, or European and International standards, whichever affords greater protection, and with Greek National law. The requirements of this vulnerable adults Safeguarding Policy are in addition to any other applicable legal requirements.

## POLICY REGARDING SEXUAL ACTIVITY WITH VULNERABLE ADULTS

It is Doctors of the World Policy that any individual vulnerable adult, regardless of the status of consent of the country in which s/he lives and/or in which the offense occurs. A vulnerable adult cannot legally give informed consent to sexual activity. Sexual activity with a person belonging In the vulnerable adults groups with or without their consent will be treated as a serious issue and will result in disciplinary action being taken, including termination, and the pursuit of any other available legal remedy. Consensual sexual activity with a vulnerable adult of consent of the country in which s/he lives and/or in which the offense occurs, will be treated as a serious issue and may result in disciplinary action being taken, including termination, and the pursuit of any other available legal remedy.

#### 1.3. DEFINITIONS

Protection of Vulnerable Adults: The set of activities that we undertake in order to protect specific adults at risk who are suffering or likely to suffer significant harm, violence, exploitation, abuse and neglect due to their physical or mental health status.

Safeguarding of Vulnerable Adults: The set of policies, procedures and practices that we employ to ensure that Doctors of the World is a Vulnerable Adults safe organization and its activities are based always in the Best Interest of the adults at risk of harm or abuse.

Vulnerable Adults: are physical persons over the age of 18 who are temporarily or permanently in the position of being unable to manage their personal affairs or their property. Most vulnerable adults are people who are more likely to lose their faculties owing to physical or mental-related illnesses.

Representatives of Doctors of the World-Greek Delegation: Employees, volunteers, interns, consultants, members of MdM Board, Partners and other individuals who work with children on Doctors of the World behalf, visit Doctors of the World structures and projects, or who have access to sensitive information about Vulnerable Adults in Doctors of the World programs.

**Vulnerable Adult Abuse:** Anything which individuals, institutions or processes do or fail to do which directly or indirectly harms a vulnerable adult person or damages its prospect of safe and healthy development during the adulthood. The main categories of Vulnerable adult abuse are Physical Abuse, Emotional Abuse, Neglect/Negligent Treatment and Sexual Abuse/Sexual Exploitation.

**Physical Abuse:** The use of physical force that causes actual or likely physical injury or suffering (e.g., hitting, shaking, burning, female genital mutilation, torture).

**Emotional Abuse:** Any humiliating or degrading treatment such as bad name calling, constant criticism, belittling, persistent shaming, solitary confinement and isolation.

**Neglect/Negligent Treatment:** Persistent failure to meet a vulnerable person's basic physical and/or psychological needs, for example by failing to provide adequate food, clothing and/or shelter; failing to prevent harm; failing to ensure adequate supervision; or failing to ensure access to appropriate medical care or treatment.

Sexual Abuse/Sexual Exploitation: All forms of sexual violence, including incest, early and forced marriage, rape, involvement in pornography, and sexual slavery. Child sexual abuse also may include indecent touching or exposure, using sexually explicit language towards a vulnerable adult and showing relevant pornographic material. Sexual Exploitation is any actual or attempted abuse of a position of vulnerability, differential power, or trust, for sexual purposes, including, but not limited to, profiting monetarily, socially or politically from the sexual exploitation of another. This includes exchange of assistance due to vulnerable adults benefiting from Doctors of the World-Greek Delegation activities. The sexual exploitation of a vulnerable adult who cannot provide of consent is an act of vulnerable adult sexual abuse and consists a criminal offense.

## 1.4. GOOD SAFEGUARDING OF VULNERABLE ADULTS

Adult abuse is defined as a single or repeated act or lack of appropriate actions, occurring within any relationship where there is an expectation of trust, which causes harm or distress to a vulnerable person.

Safeguarding adults is about protecting those at risk of harm. It involves identifying abuse and acting whenever someone is being harmed. The available tools and manuals by UN agencies and the Interagency Standing Committee (IASC) defines a vulnerable adult as a person aged 18 years or over who is or may be in need of community care services during the adulthood by reason of mental or other disability, age or illness, and who is or may be unable to take care of him or herself, or unable to protect him or herself against significant harm or exploitation.

Safeguarding is the responsibility of everyone, including all health workers. Anyone can raise a safeguarding concern. All allegations of abuse need to be taken seriously whether made by a patient, carer, healthcare professional, or other service provider. Any concerns reported to a healthcare worker should be followed up by inquiries about the nature and circumstances of the allegation. It is very important to ask about the safety of the person when the allegation is raised and any support the person is already receiving.

The primary aim of safeguarding is to keep an individual safe and prevent further abuse from occurring. Doctors of the World-Greek Delegation states six principles of good safeguarding practice:

- Empowerment: presumption of person-led decisions and informed consent.
- Protection: support and representation for those in greatest need.

- Prevention: it is better to take action before harm occurs.
- **Proportionality:** proportionate and least intrusive response appropriate to the risk presented.
- Partnership: local solutions through services working with their communities. Communities have a part to play in preventing, detecting and reporting neglect and abuse.
- Accountability: accountability and transparency in delivering safeguarding.

Interventions should be aimed at making life easier, such as providing mobility aids or treating physical and mental illness to help individuals maintain independence. Such actions reduce barriers to patients making their own choices and reduce their reliance on others.

#### 1.5. GUIDING PRINCIPLES

- Use Rights-based, Community-based and Participatory Approaches. MDM and its partners need to ensure that vulnerable adults are taking into account in all stages of design and implementation of their activities.
- 2. Ensure equity of care and access. All Vulnerable adults should have access to quality healthcare and mental health and psychosocial support services. This access must be provided to beneficiaries in ways that are similar to the services available to the general population and with at least similar quality and at similar or lower costs and without discrimination within the community.
- **3.** Assess needs and resources. All of the relevant programmes should be based on systematic and inclusive assessment of needs.
- **4. Use a systems approach.** MDM programmes should be conceptualized through a systems-based approach with multiple layers of

complementary supports with functional referral systems between the different layers respecting always the specific needs of vulnerable adults.

- 5. Build capacity direct service provision should be accompanied by a strategy for capacity building through partnerships and include systems for followup training and supervision.
- 6. Ensure compliance with UN policies and strategies and national and international standards and guidelines. The provision of healthcare, MHPSS and protection services should be delivered in ways that are consistent with the relevant UN policies and strategies, adhere to minimum international standards and are in line with governmental policies.
- 7. **Do no harm.** It is important to be aware of the potentially negative impacts of humanitarian programmes and activities, including those with the aim to improve physical and mental health status of the vulnerable adults and to enhance their psychosocial wellbeing, and to prevent inadvertently harming of vulnerable adults

#### 1.6. RIGHTS-BASED APPROACH

Work with persons with disabilities is guided by a human rights based approach, which supports vulnerable persons during their adulthood, as active rights holders, to claim their rights. MDM-GR work with persons with disabilities is guided by the following principles of:

- Respect for inherent dignity, individual autonomy, including the freedom to make one's own choices, and independence of persons;
- Non- discrimination;
- Full and effective participation and inclusion in society;

- Respect for difference and acceptance of persons with disabilities as part of human diversity and humanity;
- · Equality of opportunity;
- Accessibility;
- Equality between men and women;
- Respect for the evolving capacities of Vulnerable
   Adults to preserve their identities

## 1.7. KEY FACTS FOR ADULTS AT RISK OF VIOLENCE AND ABUSE

#### **FREQUENCY**

Abuse of adults can take place in various environments, including their homes, hospitals, assisted living arrangements and nursing homes.

- Because of issues about identification, stigma, and institutional systems, concerns about allegations of abuse are known to be under-reported.
   Only a small proportion of adult abuse is currently detected.
- People with health needs make up a large proportion of the referrals for adult abuse, including people with physical disabilities, mental health difficulties, learning disabilities and people with substance misuse.
- One systematic review of studies of elder abuse has found that about a quarter of vulnerable elderly people are at risk of abuse, with only a small proportion of these currently detected.

#### **RISK FACTORS FOR ABUSE**

- Lack of mental capacity.
- Increasing age.
- Being physically dependent on others.
- Low self-esteem.
- Previous history of abuse.
- Negative experiences of disclosing abuse.
- · Social isolation.

 Lack of access to health and social services or high-quality information.

#### MAIN TYPES OF ABUSE

- Physical abuse may involve physical violence, misuse of medication, inappropriate restraint or sanctions.
- Sexual abuse.
- Psychological abuse, including emotional abuse, threats of harm or abandonment, deprivation of contact, humiliation, blaming, controlling, intimidation, harassment, verbal abuse.
- Financial or material abuse, including theft, fraud, exploitation, pressure in connection with wills, property, inheritance, or financial transactions, misuse or misappropriation of property, possessions, or benefits.
- Neglect and acts of omission, including ignoring medical or physical care needs, failure to provide access to appropriate health, social care, or educational services, withholding medication, adequate nutrition, and heating.
- Discriminatory abuse, including racist, sexist or abuse based on a person's disability.
- Domestic abuse including psychological, physical, sexual, financial, emotional abuse, so-called 'honor'-based violence.
- Trafficking in Human Beings includes slavery, human trafficking, and forced labor and domestic servitude.
- Organizational abuse including neglect and poor care practice within an institution or specific care setting such as a hospital or care home.
- Self-neglect includes a wide range of behavior neglecting to care for personal hygiene, health or surroundings and includes behavior such as hoarding.

## 1.8. CONFIDENTIALITY AND CONSENT

Serious case reviews often identify lack of information sharing between agencies as an issue. Case workers and volunteers must therefore ensure that they share information about their concerns while respecting an individual's right to confidentiality.

If a person retains its capacity, MDM workers and volunteers have no legal authority to make best interest decisions on their behalf. However, balancing a respect for the choices of adults who retain capacity, against the desire to promote their welfare, can present genuine dilemmas.

Patients and carers need to be informed that their right to confidentiality is not absolute and that information may be shared in some circumstances where there is a significant risk of harm to others and in cases where it is in the public interest.

Most adults are deemed, in law, capable of giving or withholding consent. In adult protection it is vital to consider if a vulnerable adult is capable of giving consent and, if so, their consent must be sought. This may be in relation to whether they gave or give consent to:

- an activity that may be abusive: if consent to abuse was given under duress, e.g., exploitation, pressure, fear or intimidation, this apparent consent should be disregarded;
- the sharing of their personal information;
- an adult protection investigation going ahead:
   where a vulnerable adult with capacity has made
   a decision that they do not want action taken,
   the consequences and risks of this decision must
   be discussed fully with the person. If they remain
   clear that they do not want action taken, their

view should be respected unless not acting will put other vulnerable adults or children at risk;

- a medical examination;
- an interview;
- certain decisions or actions being taken during the adult protection process;
- the recommendations of their Individual Protection Plan and its recommendations being actioned. If the vulnerable adult seems able to make an informed decision and does not want action or intervention, their wishes should be respected, unless:
- there is a statutory duty to intervene (e.g. a crime may have been committed or may well be); or
- public interest e.g. another person or people are put at risk; or
- it is suspected the vulnerable adult may be under the undue influence of someone else.

# 1.9. UNDUE INFLUENCE AND THE WISHES OF THE VULNERABLE ADULT

When a vulnerable has consented to an action or activity, it is important to identify if there has been 'undue influence' leading them to do so. Consent should not simply be accepted at face value since some vulnerable adults need protection from emotional manipulation and exploitation.

Respect for the wishes of a vulnerable adult must not mean passive and uncritical compliance – the consequences of continuing risk should be explained. The future protection of that vulnerable adult, other vulnerable adults and the public should be safeguarded. Even where a vulnerable adult declines action under these Adult Protection Policy and Procedures, MDM-GR staff have an overriding duty to report abuse if that adult, or others, are at risk according the national legal framework.

# 2.0. DETECTION AND ASSESSMENT OF VULNERABLE ADULT ABUSE

#### 2.1. DETECTION

Potential or actual abuse is not always obvious and often goes unnoticed for long periods of time. The wider context of the person's life, such as family support, social networks and culture, must be considered.

When assessing abuse, doctors and other aid workers should seek to establish the circumstances surrounding the concerns. The abused person may have difficulty in reporting abuse. The person may be frightened that the abuse will become worse if it is revealed and may be worried that it may leave them even more vulnerable.

An abused adult may seem withdrawn, unkempt, lose weight, and have poor skin care. This may be due to illness or may be due to neglect. It is important to establish whether the person can reach a drink, can feed him or herself and is able to ask for help.

Unexplained injuries may be discovered on examination or reported. These should be followed up and the cause of injury clarified to understand whether abuse may have occurred.

The distress caused by abuse may cause the person to have behavioral change, such as becoming withdrawn, aggressive, irritable or emotionally labile.

#### 2.2. ASSESSMENT

Factors to consider when inquiring about abuse include:

- The vulnerability of the individual.
- The nature and extent of the abuse.
- The length of time it has been occurring.
- · The impact on the individual.
- The risk of repeated or increasingly serious acts.

# 2.3. MANAGING THE CONVERSATION WITH AN INDIVIDUAL WHEN ABUSE IS SUSPECTED:

- Make sure the alleged perpetrator is not present.
- It may be helpful for the potentially abused person to be accompanied by a trusted person.
- Ensure they have appropriate support to express themselves clearly, including an interpreter if necessary.
- Be clear what will happen with the information that the victim discloses.
- Establish the facts of the allegation of abuse and acknowledge the impact of the abuse on the victim.
- Making sure the potential abuser is not present when asking about concerns should help the abused person to talk openly. Being accompanied by a trusted person may help a vulnerable adult feel supported and more confident in sharing information.

#### 2.4. MANAGEMENT AND REFER-RAL (APPLICABLE ONLY IN DO-MESTIC OPERATIONS)

In all cases of possible abuse, case workers and doctors must assess the risk to the individuals and whether there is a need for immediate intervention. Circumstances that would require immediate action would include when someone's life is in immediate danger or there is significant risk of serious harm. Then you should ring 197 (EKKA HELPLINE) /100 (Police Emergency Line) / 166 (EKAB – Health Emergencies Line).

Case workers assessing risk should also think about any risk posed to adults at risk other than the patient, to members of the public, or to children and to keep aware of the incident the project manager and /or the director of MDM operations.

All concerns regarding significant risk of abuse should be reported to the local services responsible for safeguarding. If unsure, case workers should always make a referral for investigation. All responses depend on the circumstances of the case. The MDM-GR office in charge of the referral is the operations department.

In Greece the local services responsible for safeguarding are the Municipal Social Services and the regional office of public prosecutor. The lead agency for safeguarding is the Municipal Social Services. The public prosecutor is able to delegate this authority to other statutory organizations. Case workers need to be aware of how and where to report in their local area.

Most safeguarding boards have contact details and information on their websites.

### 3.0. REFERENCES

- 1. UN Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities. Available at: https://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/convention-on-the-rights-of-persons-with-disabilities.html
- 2. Council of Europe Convention of 13 January 2000 on the International Protection of Adults. Available at: https://www.hcch.net/en/instruments/conventions/full-text/?cid=71
- 3. Council of Europe Convention on preventing and combating violence against women and domestic violence. Available at: https://www.coe.int/en/web/conventions/full-list/-/conventions/treaty/210
- **4. UN Convention on the Rights of the Child.** Available at: https://www.ohchr.org/en/professionalinterest/pages/crc.aspx
- **5.** United Nations Principles for Older Persons. Available at: https://www.ohchr.org/EN/ProfessionalInterest/Pages/OlderPersons.aspx
- 6. UNHCR MANUAL: Working with Persons with Disabilities in Forced Displacement. Available at: https://www.unhcr.org/4ec3c81c9.html
- 7. UN Istanbul Protocol. Manual on Effective Investigation and Documentation of Torture and Other Cruel, Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment. Available at: https://www.ohchr.org/Documents/Publications/training8Rev1en.pdf
- 8. Inter-agency Standing Committee (IASC). Guidelines for Integrating Gender-Based Violence Interventions in Humanitarian Action Camp Coordination and Camp Management Food Security and Agriculture Reducing risk, promoting resilience and aiding recovery. Available at: https://gbvguidelines.org/wp/wpcontent/uploads/2015/09/2015-IASC-Gender-based-Violence-Guidelines\_lo-res.pdf
- 9. UNFPA: Minimum Standards for Prevention and Response to Gender-Based Violence in Emergencies. Nov.2015; Available at: https://www.unfpa.org/sites/default/files/pubpdf/GBVIE.Minimum.Standard.Publication.FINAL\_.ENG\_.pdf
- 10. UNFPA: Women and Young Persons with Disabilities. Guidelines for providing Rights-Based and Gender-Responsive Services to Address Gender-Based Violence and Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights for Women and Young persons with Disabilities. Available at: https://www.unfpa.org/featured-publication/women-and-young-personsdisabilities
- 11. Global GBV Technical Support Project; JSI Research & Training Institute; RHRC Consortium. Training Manual Facilitator's Guide Interagency & Multisectoral Prevention and Response to Gender-based Violence in Populations Affected by Armed Conflict 2004). Available at: http://www.endvawnow.org/uploads/browser/files/Interagency%20Multisector%20Response%20to%20GBV.pdf
- 12. Islam MM, Jahan N, Hossain MD. Violence against women and mental disorder: a qualitative study in Bangladesh. Trop Med Health. 2018 Mar 1;46:5. doi: 10.1186/s41182-018-0085-x. Available at: https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC5831218/
- 13. World Health Organization. Global Health Cluster Health. Emergencies Programme "The Health Response To Gender-Based Violence In Emergencies: A Webinar" 2018. Available at: https://www.who.int/health-cluster/about/work/taskteams/genderbasedviolence/en/

- 14. Inter-agency Standing Committee MHPSS Reference Group (IASC-MHPSS RG). Guidelines on Mental Health and Psychosocial Support in Emergency Settings. Available at: https://www.who.int/mental\_health/emergencies/guidelines\_iasc\_mental\_health\_psychosocial\_june\_2007.pdf
- 15. UNHCR: Action against Sexual and Gender-Based Violence: An Updated Strategy. UNHCR Division of International Protection. June 2011. Available at: https://cms.emergency.unhcr.org/documents/11982/51689/
- **16.** Inter-agency Gender-Based Violence Case Management Training. Facilitator's Guide First Edition. 2017. Available at: https://reliefweb.int/sites/reliefweb.int/files/resources/interagency-gbv-case-management-guidelines\_final\_2017\_low-res.pdf
- 17. UNHCR: Handbook for the Protection of Women and Girls. First edition, January 2008. Available at: https://cms.emergency.unhcr.org/documents/11982/51689/UNHCR+Handbook+for+the+Protection+of+Women+and+Girls/f26257af-9d66-4eff-af5b-7b0e6ff6424f
- 18. UNHCR: Sexual and Gender-Based Violence against Refugees, Returnees and Internally Displaced Persons.
  Guidelines for Prevention and Response. May 2003. Available at: https://cms.emergency.unhcr.org/documents/11982/51689/
- 19. GBV Area of Responsibility Working Group: Handbook for Coordinating Gender-based Violence Interventions in Humanitarian Settings. July 2010. Available at: https://cms.emergency.unhcr.org/documents/11982/51689/
- 20. Age Marker Toolkit. European Commission's Directorate General for Humanitarian Aid and Civil Protection. Available at: https://ec.europa.eu/echo/what/humanitarian-aid/gender-sensitive-aid\_en
- 21. DG ECHO Thematic Policy Document n.6. Different Needs. Adapted Assistance. European Commission's Directorate General for Humanitarian Aid and Civil Protection. Available at: https://ec.europa.eu/echo/what/humanitarianaid/policy-guidelines\_en
- **22.** World Health Organization: Responding to children and adolescents who have been sexually abused. WHO Clinical guidelines. 2017 Available at: https://www.who.int/reproductivehealth/publications/violence/clinical-responsecsa/en/
- 23. World Health Organization: WHO Multi-country Study on Women's Health and Domestic Violence against Women. Initial results on prevalence, health outcomes and women's responses. Available at: https://www.who.int/reproductivehealth/publications/post-violence-care-in-health-facilities/en/
- 24. Law 4531/2018 62/A/5-4-2018 I) Κύρωση της Σύμβασης του Συμβουλίου της Ευρώπης για την Πρόληψη και την Καταπολέμηση της Βίας κατά των γυναικών και της Ενδοοικογενειακής Βίας και προσαρμογή της ελληνικής νομοθεσίας
- 25. Law 3500/2006 A 232/24.10.2006 για την αντιμετώπιση της ενδοοικογενειακής βίας και άλλες διατάξεις.
- 26. Law 3727/2008 A' 257/18.12.2008 Κύρωση και εφαρμογή της Σύμβασης του Συμβουλίου της Ευρώπης για την προστασία των παιδιών κατά της γενετήσιας εκμετάλλευσης και κακοποίησης, μέτρα για τη βελτίωση των συνθηκών διαβίωσης και την αποσυμφόρηση των καταστημάτων κράτησης και άλλες διατάξεις
- **27. Penal Code, a. 336 για τον Βιασμό, a. 337 για την προσβολή της γενετήσιας αξιοπρέπειας**, άρθρο 338 για την κατάχρηση σε ασέλγεια
- 28. Law 3896/2010-207/8.12.2010 για την «Εφαρμογή της αρχής των ίσων ευκαιριών και της ίσης μεταχείρισης ανδρών και γυναικών σε θέματα εργασίας και απασχόλησης»
- 29. Law 4216/2013 266/A/10-12-2013

- **30. Law 3386/2005 ΦΕΚ 212/A/23-8-2005,** a. 46-52 «Είσοδος, διαμονή και κοινωνική ένταξη υπηκόων τρίτων χωρών στην ελληνική επικράτεια»
- **31. Law 3274/2004 ΦΕΚ Α'195/19-8-04** «Οργάνωση και λειτουργία των Οργανισμών Τοπικής Αυτοδιοίκησης πρώτου και δεύτερου βαθμού»
- 32. Presidential Decree. 233/2003( 204/A/2-9-2003).
- 33. Law 3064/2002 248/A/15-10-2002 για την ρύθμιση της καταπολέμησης της εμπορίας ανθρώπων, των εγκλημάτων κατά της γενετήσιας ελευθερίας, της πορνογραφίας ανηλίκων και γενικότερα της οικονομικής εκμετάλλευσης της γενετήσιας ζωής
- **34. Law 4636/2019 Α/1.11.2019** "Περί Διεθνούς Προστασίας και άλλες διατάξεις"





12 Sapfous Str, 105 53 Athens – Greece T: +30.210.32.13.150, F: +30.210.32.13.850, e-Mail: info@mdmgreece.gr www.mdmgreece.gr

